

W&M ScholarWorks

Dissertations, Theses, and Masters Projects

Theses, Dissertations, & Master Projects

1964

A Study of Osmotic Response in Neomysis americana Smith

Robert J. Miller College of William and Mary - Virginia Institute of Marine Science

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.wm.edu/etd

Part of the Marine Biology Commons, Oceanography Commons, and the Physiology Commons

Recommended Citation

Miller, Robert J., "A Study of Osmotic Response in Neomysis americana Smith" (1964). *Dissertations, Theses, and Masters Projects*. William & Mary. Paper 1539617389. https://dx.doi.org/doi:10.25773/v5-tpfb-f744

This Thesis is brought to you for free and open access by the Theses, Dissertations, & Master Projects at W&M ScholarWorks. It has been accepted for inclusion in Dissertations, Theses, and Masters Projects by an authorized administrator of W&M ScholarWorks. For more information, please contact scholarworks@wm.edu.

A STUDY OF OSMOTIC RESPONSE IN NEOMYSIS AMERICANA Smith

by

ROBERT JOSEPH MILLER

A THESIS

Submitted to the School of Marine Science of the College of William and Mary in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of MASTER OF ARTS

1964

Approved

ABSTRACT

Three aspects of osmotic behavior were studied in samples of the mysid, <u>Neomysis americana</u> Smith, drawn from populations found in environments with high and low salinity. These were: (1) mortality rates in extreme salinities, (2) blood total osmotic concentration after acclimation to various concentrations of the medium, and (3) oxygen consumption in waters of three different salinities. The samples from the two populations differed in their mortality rates in low extreme salinities but not in their body fluid concentration or respiratory rate in a series of salinities. <u>N. americana</u> was found to regulate its body fluid concentration both hypo- and hyperosmotically to the medium and was estimated to be isosmotic at <u>ca.</u> 27 o/oo. Respiration in a medium of 10 or 30 o/oo salinity was significantly higher than in the acclimation medium of 20 o/oo.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PE	1g e
INTRODUCTION	1
MATERIALS AND METHODS	3
Collections	3
Acclimation	4
Experimental Procedure	5
RESULTS	9
Mortality in Extreme Salinities	9
Blood Osmotic Concentration 1	2
Respiration Data 1	2
DISCUSSIONl	6
SUMMARY 2	21
LITERATURE CITED 2	23
APPENDIX 2	26

LIST OF FIGURES

		Page
1.	Freezing point depressions of artificial sea water standards	7
2.	Average of percent mortality of each population sample in the series of test salinities at 12 hours elapsed time	10
3.	Average of percent mortality of each population sample in the series of test salinities at given elapsed time	11
4.	The means, interval estimates, and ranges of the com- bined blood concentration data from both population samples at 10, 20, 30, and 36 o/oo salinity. The solid computed regression line is compared to the isosmotic line of theoretical, perfect osmoconformity	13
5.	The means, interval estimates, and ranges of oxygen con- sumption for samples drawn from the York and Wachapreague populations at three test salinities	• 14

LIST OF TABLES

I.	Composition of artificial sea water	Page 26
п.	Percent mortality in 2, 4, 6, 32, 34, 36, 38, and 20 (control) o/oo salinity at 4, 8, 12, 16, 20, and 24 hours elapsed time	27
III.	Freezing point depressions in ^o C at 10, 20, 30, and 36 o/oo salinity	29
IV.	Oxygen consumption in μ l 0 ₂ /mg N/hr at 10, 20, and 30 o/oo salinity	30

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author is indebted to Professor Langley Wood for his guidance and patience through all phases of this study. Professors W. A. Van Engel and John J. Norcross also rendered valuable aid in the statistical treatment of the data and in reading the manuscript. Special thanks are due Miss Evelyn Wells for her co-operation in obtaining needed references, Dr. E. B. Joseph for the use of his laboratory facilities, and Mr. Michael Castagna for his assistance in collecting. Members of the staff of the Virginia Institute of Marine Science, and of the Physiology Department in particular, are thanked for contributing unselfishly of their time and energy whenever requested.

INTRODUCTION

<u>Neomysis americana</u> Smith, commonly called an opossum shrimp, is a small (up to 14 mm long), shrimp-like crustacean of the subclass Malacostraca and order Mysidacea. It has a reported range extending from the Gulf of Saint Lawrence (Tattersall, 1939) at least as far south as Cape Hatteras (Bigelow and Sears, 1939) in shallow inshore waters. It is abundant and widespread in the Chesapeake (Cowles, 1930), Delaware (Hulbert, 1957), and Narragansett (Herman, 1963) estuaries. It exhibits diurnal vertical migration (Herman, 1963) and is primarily a detritus feeder. Additional information on the life history of the genus may be found in Tattersall and Tattersall (1951).

N. americanahas been extensively collected in oceanic salinities by Fish (1925), Cowles (1930), Tattersall (1939), Bigelow and Sears (1939), Cronin <u>et al.</u> (1962), and others. The species was consistently found as far up Delaware Bay as the 4 o/oo isohaline (Hulbert, 1957). The same wide salinity distribution was noted from plankton collections of the Ichthyology Department of the Virginia Institute of Marine Science made in the York River and over the continental shelf off the Virginia coast. Comparatively few individuals were found in lower Chesapeake Bay collections of the same series. The wide range of distribution implies strong euryhaline qualities for the species. These observations provoke the questions: (1) What adjustments are made in the species to enable it to survive this wide range of salinities? (2) Does the nature of these adjustments change for populations in different regions of the salinity range?

Karpevich (1958) appears to have done the only experimentation with salinity variables on any of the Mysidacea. He determined survival and respiration rates of <u>Mesomysis kawalevskyi</u> in waters of different salinities and ionic ratios. Excellent reviews of osmoregulation in Crustacea have been made by Robertson (1960), Prosser and Brown (1961), Lockwood (1962), and Kinne (1963).

Samples of two populations from different salinity regimes were studied in order to find any differences in the adaptation (either genetic or through long-term acclimation) of individuals to different parts of the salinity range. One population was from the lower end of the York River which has mean monthly maximum, minimum surface salinities of 22.6 and 14.9 o/oo and an annual mean surface salinity of 19.4 o/oo (U. S. C. G. S., 1960). The other was from the ocean side of eastern shore of Virginia with a salinity range of 29 to 33 o/oo (Virginia Institute of Marine Science, unpublished records).

Three variables were measured, all of which have been widely used to study osmotic behavior in aquatic animals. These were mortality rates to establish a general working range for subsequent experimentation, blood osmotic concentration to determine whether they were osmoregulators or conformers, and respiratory rate as a clue to the energy requirements for adjustment to their particular salinity regime.

-2-

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Collections

York River collections were made at Gloucester Point, Virginia, in the cel grass zone (<u>ca</u>. 2 feet deep at MLW) in the spring, and in the river channel at Gloucester Point (<u>ca</u>. 30 feet deep at MLW) in the summer and fall. Eastern shore collections were made near Wachapreague, Virginia, in the salt marsh channels (2 to 10 feet depths) in the spring and at Wachapreague Inlet (15 to 30 feet depths) in the summer and fall.

Collections were made with a 50 cm semi-circular epifauna net towed slowly (1 to 2 knots) along the bottom behind a skiff. Data on location, water temperature, salinity, time, tide, depth, bottom type, and estimated numbers and size of mysids were recorded for possible correlation with experimental results.

In the laboratory, individuals were sorted by carefully pouring them into a coarse mesh (lmm) net which was immersed to the open end in sea water. Smaller individuals, not restricted by the mesh size, swam to the bottom of the sea water container and were discarded. The remaining, larger, individuals were saved for experiments. There is no gross morphological difference other than size between juveniles and adults, since the adult form is attained before the individuals are released from the brood pouch of the female. An arbitrary minimum length of <u>ca</u>. 8 mm was set for experimental animals. The mean length was 10 to 12 mm throughout the sampling period.

- 3-

Aliquots of most collections were checked for taxonomic identification. The shape and pigmentation of the telson was found to be a convenient method for distinguishing <u>N. americana</u> from other local species (Hopkins, 1958). Two specimens of <u>Mysidopsis bigelowi</u> from a York River collection in December were the only individuals not identified as <u>N. americana</u>.

Acclimation

Experimental animals were acclimated to the desired temperature and salinity for a minimum of six days. The acclimation temperature was $20 \pm 2^{\circ}$ C for all experiments. The acclimation salinities were 20 o/oo for the mortality and respiration experiments, and 10, 20, 30, and 36 o/oo for the blood concentration experiments.

Oyster feces were chosen as food; this had the advantage of prolonged suspension, because 80 percent of the particles were less than 2 μ in diameter (Dexter Haven, personal communication). The disadvantage lay in the suitability of oyster feces as a bacterial culture medium; this was counteracted with moderate success by adding dihydrostreptomycin sulfate to the holding containers at a dosage of 50 mg/l (Marshall and Orr, 1958).

Artificial sea water (see Appendix, Table I), mixed to the desired salinity with distilled water, was the acclimation medium. Salinities were determined with a hydrometer to ± 0.3 o/oo or by titration (Knudsen method).

The animals were held in either 10 gallon Plexiglass aquaria or in covered, shallow, enamel pans.

-4-

Experimental Procedure

All experiments were conducted at the acclimation temperature of 20° C.

Mortality in Extreme Salinities: The experimental containers were rectangular, plastic, disposable rat cages of 5 liters capacity. Four liters of artificial sea water were made for each container at the experimental salinities of 2, 4, 6, 32, 34, 36, and 38 c/oo, with 20 c/co as the control (acclimation) salinity.

Mysids were transferred from the holding to the experimental containers with a dip net. Subsamples (N=25) from each population sample were tested for relative mortality rate at the above salinities in two to four replicate containers. Experiments were run for 24 hours with the number surviving recorded for each container at one to four hour intervals.

Animals were considered dead when they did not respond to tactile stimulation.

<u>Blood Osmotic Concentration</u>: The blood concentration was determined by the freezing point depression technique modified from Jones (1941).

Eight to 12 lambda of blood were collected by capillary action using a drawn capillary tube (inside diameter <u>ca</u>. 100μ) inserted into the punctured pericardium. The end of the capillary tube containing the sample was sealed by sucking melted paraffin into the tube behind the sample. The other end of the tube was sealed by dipping it into the melted paraffin. The samples were placed in a calcium chloride solution in a freezer at $-25^{\circ}C$ at least overnight.

The samples were then removed to a cold room at 4.5° C and allowed to melt slowly in a chilled (-3°C), but slowly warming, brine solution. The temperature of the brine was taken with a stem thermometer to the nearest 0.05° C (thermometer graduated in 0.1° C intervals) at the time the last crystal of a sample melted. This was taken as the freezing point depression of a sample.

Artificial sea water was used for the 10, 20, and 30 o/oo standards. Blood concentration is expressed in parts-per-thousand salinity by converting ^oC to parts-per-thousand on the standard curve (Fig. 1).

Respiratory Rate: Respiratory rates were determined in a constant volume Warburg respirometer (Umbreit et al., 1957).

Animals were transferred from the 20 o/oo acclimation salinity to the experimental salinities contained in the 100 ml Warburg flasks. An experimental run consisted of two sets of 10, 20, and 30 o/oo flasks, one set for each population sample, and one flask as a thermobarometer (control).

Preliminary experiments showed 35 individuals per flask to be an optimum number. A greater number increased cannibalism and also inhibited O₂ consumption. Fewer mysids gave smaller readings, hence smaller differences between experimental variables.



Fig. 7. Preasing point depressions of entificial ser water standards.

Four anesthetics, magnesium chloride, succinyl choline chloride, eserine sulphate, and tricaine methanesulphonate (MS-222), were applied to determine whether differences in the metabolism of animals exposed to different salinities were due to osmoregulation or to an escape reaction as hypothesized by Lofts (1956).

RESULTS

Mortality in Extreme Salinities

The York individuals were more tolerant of the low salinities than the animals from Wachapreague. The two groups were equally tolerent of high salinities (Figs. 2 and 3). The mortalities of the samples from the two populations at 12 hours elapsed time are typical of the pattern of mortality at the other elapsed times (Fig. 2). The curves showing cumulative percent mortality of the samples for each salinity at a series of elapsed times have distinctive features (Fig. 3). They approximate the general shape of the top half of a sigmoid curve with a rapid initial rise giving way to a gradual leveling off. The high initial mortality is where the difference (statistical significance) between the population samples is established. Population sample differences in percent mortality are as great at eight hours as at 24 hours or are greater at 8 than at 24 in all salinities except 6 o/co. The mortality in the control is considered insignificant.

Chi-square was employed to test for significance of differences in the deaths, per 4-hour interval, of mysid shrimp in samples obtained from the York and Wachapreague areas. Table II of the Appendix summarizes the percent mortality by 4-hour intervals. Significant differences were found at 2, 4, 6, and 38 o/oo.

-9-



Fig. 2. Average of percent morts'ity of each population sample in the series of test colinities at 12 hours elanced time.



Fig. 3. Average of percent mortality of each population sample in the series of test salinities at given elersed time.

Blood Osmotic Concentration

The blood freezing point depressions (Appendix, Table III) were analysed for population differences by the "t" test. The means were 0.88, 1.05, 1.30, and 1.47°C at 10, 20, 30, and 36 o/oo, respectively, for the York population and; 0.81, 1.08, 1.37, and 1.38°C at 10, 20, 30, and 36 o/oo, respectively, for the Wachapreague population. No significant differences (at the 5% level of confidence) were found between the population samples at any one of the four test salinities.

It was found that <u>Neomysis</u> regulates both hyperosmotically and hyposmotically and is isosmotic at about 27 o/oo. The isosmotic line, showing theoretically perfect osmotic conformity, and the experimental curve are compared in Fig. 4. The latter is a computed regression line drawn from the combined data from the samples from both populations. There is approximately a 4 o/oo increase in body fluid concentration for every 10 o/oo increase in ambient medium salinity. The data also suggest the possibility that the relationship between the media and blood concentration may not be linear but may follow the isosmotic line for a distance between 20 and 30 o/oo salinity. The means, interval estimates, and ranges of freezing point depressions are also given in this figure and in Table III of the Appendix.

Respiration Data

The respiration data means were 162, 135, and 161 ul $0_2/mg$ N/hr for 10, 20, and 30 o/oo samples, respectively, of the York population and 156, 134, and 150 ul $0_2/mg$ N/hr for 10, 20 and 30 o/oo samples, respectively, of the Wachapreague population (Fig. 5; Appendix, Table IV). No significant mean differences in respiration rates between samples at any of the three salinities could be found with "t" tests. Comparisons

-12-



Fig. 4. The means, interval estimates, and ranges of the combined blood concentration data from both population samples at 10, 20, 30, and 36 o/oo salinity. The solid computed regression line is compared to the isosmotic line of theoretical, perfect osmoconformity.





Fig. 5. The means, interval estimates, and ranges of oxygen consumption for samples drawn from the York and Wachapreague populations at three test salinities.

of respiratory rates between the experimental salinities, however, showed significant differences. That is, respiration rates at the extreme test salinities of 10 and 30 o/oo were significantly higher than at the acclimation salinity of 20 o/oo in the semples from both populations. The significance was at the 1% level of confidence for the York samples and at the 5% level of confidence for the Wachapreague samples.

Attempts to narcotize <u>Neomysis</u> were unsuccessful. The animals did not resume normal activity in fresh sea water after being exposed to doses of anesthetic large enough to inhibit motility. Death was not instantaneous, but followed a gradual weakening as evidenced by an obvious decline in the rate of heartbeat.

DISCUSSION

Three aspects of the osmotic behavior of <u>Neomysis americana</u> have been studied: mortality rates in extreme salinities, blood concentration at varying concentrations of the medium, and oxygen consumption in water of three different salinities.

Due to the limitations of time and facilities osmoregulation was studied at a single temperature in this investigation. Temperature is known to have a marked influence on osmoregulation, however. In general, Crustacea are more tolerant of high salinities at low temperatures and low salinities at high temperatures (Verwey, 1957). Panikkar (1940) postulates that invasion of fresh and estuarine waters is easier in warmer climates. Brockema (1941) attributes the fall offshore migrations to high salinity water and the spring inshore migration to lower salinities of the decapod <u>Crangon crangon</u> to temperature-related changes in salinity tolerance.

The mortality data show the relative mortality rates of the samples from the two populations resulting from a direct transfer from acclimation to extreme salinities. A general salinity working range for subsequent experimentation was also based upon the mortality experiments.

Samples from the two populations differed in their mortality rates in the lew (2, 4, and 6 o/oo) experimental salinities. There was

-16-

also a significant difference at 38 o/oo for which there is no ready explanation. The fact that it is beyond natural environmental salinities is an important consideration in its interpretation and precludes direct attribution to environmental influences. The differences in the low salinities are in the direction expected: that is, the York samples, from a low salinity environment, showed less mortality than the Wachapreague samples. The lack of differences at the high salinities is assumed to be related to the genetic makeup of the species and/or exposure to similar high environmental salinities at some time during their life cycle.

The high initial mortality, revealed in the percent mortality curves (Fig. 3), is where the difference (statistical significance) between population samples is established. Two possible explanations for these differences are indicated. (1) The York individuals are more tolerant of the body fluid dilution that must accompany the transfer to low salinities. Death in low salinities is generally assumed to result from the dilution of body fluids after the saturation of enzyme systems which regulate the concentration of ions in the cytoplasm (Giese, 1962). (2) The York individuals regulate their blood ion concentration more effectively under lethal stress than do the Wachapreague <u>Neomysis</u>.

The above hypothesis could be tested by determining blood concentrations in the lethal salinities at brief intervals after transfer from the acclimation salinity is made.

-17-

It was found that <u>Neomysis</u> regulates both hyperosmotically and hyposmotically (Fig. 4). Osmoregulation is an essential adaptation to survival in estuarine environments for nearly all Crustacea. An associated adaptation is reduction of the "preferred" (regulated) body fluid concentration. It is postulated by Potts (1954) that this is the most important adaptation in reducing the cork load of hyperosmotic regulation. Other means of facilitating hyperosmotic regulation are reduced ion and water permeability, excretion of urine hypotonic to the blood, urine volume regulation, and efficient absorption of ions from the medium. The body fluid concentration of <u>N. americana</u> at 10 o/oo ambient salinity is <u>ca</u>. 20 o/oo (Fig. 4). The species' acquisition of the ability to regulate hyperosmotically and the reduction of its "preferred" body fluid concentration from marine salinities (35 to 20 o/oo at the 10 o/oo acclimation salinity) shows that the species has made important steps toward colonizing fresh water.

The principal area for active absorption and excretion of salts in Crustacea is the gills (Prosser and Brown, 1961). Because <u>Neomysis</u> respires through its integument and has no gills it would be of interest to determine the organ responsible for this function. There is no information available on urine concentration or volume, or integumentary permeability.

Although the species does not lend itself well to respiratory measurements because of its sensitivity to handling and its habit of cannibalism, an approximation of oxygen requirements has been made. Oxygen consumption was significantly higher in 10 and 30 o/oo than in the acclimation salinity of 20 o/oo (Fig. 5). This differs from the

-18-

findings of Karpevich (1958) who states that the respiration of <u>Mesomysis</u> <u>kowalevskyi</u> is higher in water of optimum salinities than in high, sublethal salinity waters. These seemingly contradictory findings are unexplained, but the fact that Karpevich worked with a species which had a different salinity range (<u>ca. 0-10 o/oo</u>) provides a possible solution.

Differences in respiration in a series of salinities have classically been attributed to work performed in osmoregulation. The further the concentration of the medium from the animal's isosmotic point, the higher is the respiratory rate within the animal's limits of survival. Recent work by a number of authors on various crustaceans indicates, however, that the correlation of whole animal respiratory rates with osmotic work is uncertain. This subject is discussed by Wolvekamp and Waterman (1960).

It may be that osmoregulation is not the primary cause of salinity-correlated variations in respiration. Gross (1957) proposed that respiration differences in certain decapods were primarily due to an increase in motile activity resulting from an escape reaction when placed in a less favorable salinity. An attempt to test this hypothesis by comparing the respiratory rates of anesthetized and nonanesthetized animals under conditions of osmotic stress failed because an anesthetic suitable for <u>Neomysis</u> was not found.

The mean respiration rate for <u>Neomysis</u> at the 20 o/oo acclimation salinity, 135 μ l O₂/mg N/hr for a mean animal weight of 0.02 mg N, compares reasonably well with <u>ca</u>. 186 μ l O₂/mg N/hr for an animal weight of 0.02 mg N on a composite curve for Crustacea given by Zeuthen (1947).

-19-

It is also close to a measurement made by Grainger (1956), 188 µl O_2/mg N/hr, on a freshwater mysid, <u>Hemimysis lamornae</u>. Karpevich's results, <u>ca</u>. 17 µl O_2/mg N/hr, is not even roughly comparable to those of Zeuthen, Grainger or the author. There is no ready explanation for this difference. Zeuthen's units cc $O_2/kg/hr$ (assumed to be wet weight); Grainger's units µl O_2/gm wet weight/hr; and Karpevich's units ml $O_2/$ <u>zolotnik</u> live weight/hr (l <u>zolotnik</u> 4.266 gm); have been converted to µl O_2/mg N/hr, the units used in this study. In the above conversions one mg nitrogen equals 40 mg dry weight and 170 mg wet, or live, weight.

The failure of the blood concentration and oxygen consumption tests to delineate differences between the two population samples may result from the fact that neither of these two studies was conducted under extreme (i.e., near-lethal) conditions of salinity. Attempts to acclimate mysids to these extreme conditions for the purpose of running the necessary experiments were not successful. The question of whether the two populations show different adaptations, genetic or through long-term acclimation, to their respective salinity regimes must, therefore, be left open.

-20-

SUMMARY

1. Three aspects of the osmotic behavior of high and low salinity environment population samples of <u>Neomysis americana</u> have been studied in light of their method(s) of adjustment to the ambient salinity.

2. The two population samples differed in their mortality rates in low extremes of salinity with the sample from low environmental salinities being more tolerant of low test salinities. The two samples did not differ, however, in their blood concentrations or rates of oxygen consumption at various concentrations of the medium. This is possibly due to the fact that the mortality data represent more extreme conditions of salinity than that derived from the other two methods.

3. <u>N. americana</u> regulates its body fluid concentration both hypo- and hyperosmotically over the tested range of 10 to 36 o/oo and is isosmotic at <u>ca</u>. 27 o/oo salinity. Osmoregulation and reduction of the "preferred" body fluid concentration are known to be important crustacean adaptations to the estuarine environment. The acquisition of both of these mechanisms by <u>Neomysis</u> shows that it has made an important step toward the colonization of fresh water.

4. Respiration in media of 10 and 30 o/oo salinity was significantly higher than in the acclimation medium of 20 o/oo. Although

-21-

osmotic work is a possible explanation for these differences, they are probably more correctly attributed to other causes, for example, increased motile activity in an unfavorable salinity.

· j Lada

when

LITERATURE CITED

- Bigelow, H. B. and Mary Sears. 1939. Studies of the waters off the continental shelf, Cape Cod to Chesapeake Bay. III. A volumetric study of the zooplankton. Harvard. Mem. Mus. Comp. Zool. 54:183-378.
- Broekema, M. M. M. 1941. Seasonal movements and osmotic behavior of shrimp <u>Crangon crangon</u> L. Arch. Neerl. Zool. 6:1-100.
- Cowles, R. P. 1930. A biological study of the offshore waters of Chesapeake Bay. Bull. U. S. Bur. Fish. 46:277-381.
- Cronin, L. E., Joanne C. Daiber, and E. M. Hulbert. 1962. Quantitative seasonal aspects of zooplankton in the Delaware River estuary. Chesapeake Sci. 3:63-93.
- Fish, C. J. 1925. Seasonal distribution of plankton of the Woods Hole region. Bull. U. S. Bur. Fish. 41:91-179.
- Giese, A. C. 1962. Cell physiology. 2nd ed. Philadelphia. Saunders, 592 p.
- Grainger, J. N. R. 1956. Effects of changes of temperature on the respiration of certain Crustacea. Nature, London. 178:930.
- Gross, W. J. 1957. An analysis of response to osmotic stress in selected decapod Grustacea. Biol. Bull. 112:43-62.
- Herman, S. S. 1963. Vertical migration of opossum shrimp, <u>Neomysis</u> <u>americana</u> Smith. Limnol. Oceanogr. 8:228-238.
- Hopkins, T. L. 1958. Mysid shrimp. Estuarine Bull. (Univ. Delaware) 3:4-6. -23-

Hulbert, E. M. 1957. The distribution of <u>Neomysis americana</u> in the estuary of the Delaware Bay. Limnol. Oceanogr. 2:1-11.

- Jones, L. L. 1941. Osmotic regulation in several crabs of the Pacific coast of North America. J. Cell. Comp. Physiol. 19:79-92.
- Karpevich, A. F. 1958. Survival, reproduction and respiration of the mysid <u>Mesomysis kawalevskýi</u> (<u>Paramysis lacustris kowalevski</u>, Czern.) in the reservoirs of brackish water of the USSR. (Ecological and physiological basis for the acclimation of the mysids in the Aral and Baltic seas and in the Balkhash Lake.) In Russian, English summary . Zool. Zhur. 37:1121-1135.
- Kinne, Otto. 1963. Salinity, osmoregulation, and distribution in macroscopic Crustacea. p. 95-102. <u>In</u>: Marine distributions,
 M. J. Dunbar, editor. Roy. Soc. Canada, Publ. No. 5. Toronto, Univ. Toronto Press.
- Lockwood, A. P. M. 1962. The osmoregulation of Crustacea. Biol. Rev. 37:257-305.
- Lofts, B. 1956. The effect of salinity changes on the respiratory rate of the prawn <u>Palaemonetes varians</u> (Leach). J. Exp. Biol. 33:730-736.
- Marshall, S. M., and A. P. Orr. 1958. Some uses of antibiotics in physiological experiments in sea water. J. Mar. Res. 17:341-346.
- Panikkar, N. K. 1940. Influence of temperature on the osmotic behavior of some Crustacea and its bearing on problems of animal distribution. Nature, London. 146:366-367.
- Potts, W. T. W. 1954. The energetics of osmotic regulation in brackishand fresh-water animals. J. Exp. Biol. 31:618-630.

- Prosser, C. L. and F. A. Brown, Jr. 1961. Comparative animal physiology. 2nd ed. Philadelphia, Saunders, 688 p.
- Robertson, J. D. 1960. Osmotic and ionic regulation, p. 317-339. The physiology of Crustacea, T. H. Waterman, editor. Vol. I, New York, Academic Press.
- Tattersall, W. M. 1939. The Mysidacea of eastern Canadian waters. Fish. Res. Bd. Canada 4:281-286.
- Tattersall, W. M. and Olive S. Tattersall. 1951. The British Mysidacea. London, Ray Society. 460 p.
- Umbreit, W. W., R. H. Burris, and J. S. Stauffer. 1957. Manometric techniques. 3rd ed. Minneapolis. Burgess, 338 p.
- U. S. Coast and Geodetic Survey. 1960. Surface water temperature and salinity, Atlantic coast, North and South America. Publication 31-1. U. S. Govt. Printing office, Washington. 76 p.
- Verwey, J. 1957. A plea for the study of temperature influence on osmotic regulation. Ann. Biolo. 33:129-149.
- Wolvekamp, H. P. and T. H. Waterman. 1960. Respiration, p. 35-100. <u>In</u>: The physiology of Crustacea, T. H. Waterman, editor. Vol. I, New York, Academic Press.
- Zeuthen, E. 1947. Oxygen consumption of developing animals. C. R. Trav. Lab. Carlsberg, Ser. Chim. 26:17-161. [Cited from Prosser and Brown, 1961.]

APPENDIX

Table I. Composition of the artificial sea water, Seven Seas Mix, produced by the Utility Chemical Co., Paterson, N. J. The following list of constituents is from the manufacturer's Technical Bulletin No. 202.

NaCl	1.5	g/]	100	ml
MgCl., 6H.0	0.25	Ħ	Ħ	
KČI 2 2	0.04	Ħ	11	
Ca (as Cl ⁻)	0.001	11	Ħ	
Ca (as SO,")	0.011	1	u	
BR (as K^+)	2.2	mg/1	100	ml
Sr (as Cl ⁻)	0.38	tt	11	
Al (as Cl ⁻)	0.002	811	11	
Rb (as Cl^{-})	0.006	1"	Ħ	
Li (as Cl ⁻)	0,000	6"	Ħ	
I (as K ⁺)	0.002	Ħ	ŧI	
NacEDTA	2.0	Ц	将	
Fe [~] (as EDTA)	0.01	Ħ	料	
Zn (as SO ₁ =)	0.23	11	Ħ	
Mn (as SO_{λ}^{T})	0.065	15	Ħ	
Mo (as NaMoO)	0.02	Ħ	11	
Co (as SO ₁ =)	0.000	63	#	
Cu (as 50^{-1}_{1})	0.000	13	n	
TRIS AMINOHYDROXY METHANE	50	11	11	
KNO3	10	11	\$1	
K ₂ HFO ₄	1.0	11	9 9	
Nã ₂ Sid ₃ ·9H ₂ 0	10	11	*5	

Salinity	Popu-	Repli-	i- Elapsed time (hours)					
(0/00)	lation	cation	4	8	<u>12</u>	16	20	24
2	Y	I	44	54	70	90	96	100
		II	40	56	68	90	92	92
	W	I	100	100	100	100	100	100
		II	96	100	100	100	100	100
4	Y	I	16	28	48	60	64	64
		II	16	36	48	64	76	80
		III	28	28	36	40	44	52
		IV	24	24	28	40	40	44
	W	I	40	40	64	76	84	84
		II	20	20	48	54	56	68
		TTT	16	58	64	64	64	64
		IV	8	50	64	64	66	68
6	v	Ŧ	12	76	16	18	20	20
0	**	TT		Å	12	16	22	28
		TTT	10	74	16	16	16	20
		TV	10	16	10	21	20	20
	14/	1 V T	/	10	20	26	20	20 50
	vv	 TT	4 10	20) A 1 M	20	44	52
		11 TTT	74	20	40	20	40	50
			4	20	20	20	40	26
		Τ¥	0	⊥ 4 ,	TO	20	26	40
32	Y	I	12	18	34	40	48	48
		II	20	30	32	42	52	56
		III	14	20	22	24	40	40
	W	I	12	24	28	38	48	56
		IĪ	4	10	12	16	24	32
		III	ō	0	8	16	30	44
34	Y	T	12	26	38	48	54	76
	-	TT	36	18	52	60	76	92
		TTT	18	36	36	36	44	11
	發	T	12	28	10	56	60	80
		TT		12	24	32	10	40
		III	4	10	12	14	26	40
36	v	т	36	56	66	80	ደበ	92
	•	TT	18	58	66	72	80	81
	W	 T	40 60	61	72	82	00	100
	73	- T T	50 54	54 56	56	202	7~ \$0	200 21
		ىلەر كە	0	90	50	10	OV.	04

Table II. Percent mortality in 2, 4, 6, 32, 34, 36, 38, and 20 (control) o/oo salinity at 4, 8, 12, 16, 20, and 24 hours elapsed time.

Y- York population

W- Wachapreague population

Salinity	Popu-	Repli-	Elapsed time (hours)					
(0/00)	lation	cation	4	8	12	16	20	24
38	Y	I	36	56	66	80	80	92
		II	48	58	66	72	80	84
	W	I	60	64	72	82	92	100
		II	56	56	56	70	80	84
20	Y	I	0	0	4	4	4	12
		II	0	0	2	4	4	12
		III	0	0	0	Å	Ó	8
		IV	0	0	0	2	0	8
	W	I	0	8	8	8	8	8
		II	0	0	0	4	0	4
		III	Ö	0	0	4	0	4

Population	10 0/09	Salinity 20 o/oo	30 0/00	36 0/00
York	0.75 1.15 1.00 0.95 1.00 0.80 0.80 0.90 0.80 0.85 0.90 0.65	1.05 1.00 1.05 0.95 1.10 1.00 0.90 0.90 1.10 1.20 1.05 1.10 1.10 1.10	1.20 1.15 1.30 1.25 1.30 1.60	1.25 1.35 1.65 1.60 1.50
Wachapreague	0.90 0.70 0.75 0.80 0.80 0.90 0.80	0.95 1.00 1.10 1.10 1.15 1.15 1.15 1.10 0.95 1.10 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.10 1.00	1.35 1.35 1.40 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.50 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.45 1.40 1.45 1.40 1.35	1.50 1.20 1.20 1.40 1.30 1.40 1.65
N X	19 0.850	29 1.062	20 1.348	12 1.417
interval Estimates	0.057	0.031	0.050	0.103

Table III. Freezing point depressions in ^oC at 10, 20, 30, and 36 o/oo salinity.

	10 o/o o		20 0,	20 0/00		/00
	¥	W	Y	W	Y	W
	147 157 162 194 207 201 149 145 132 186 182 157 150 156 130 147 147 160	130 132 123 164 176 164 189 218 210 145 145 145 140 141 141 126	$130 \\ 130 \\ 103 \\ 121 \\ 127 \\ 119 \\ 124 \\ 121 \\ 150 \\ 145 \\ 116 \\ 123 \\ 123 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 147 \\ 158 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 129 \\ 152 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 136 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 136 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 146 \\ 129 \\ 156 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 120 \\ 146 \\ 140 $	214* 206* 208* 148 175 137 144 154 175 123 131 106 124 124 108 129 125 111	184 166 167 160 183 172 174 180 167 130 138 122 147 168 152	159 152 156 132 141 123 189 178 166 140 155 162 172 142 150 126 138 126
<u>N</u> X Inter-	18 162	15 156	28 135	15 134	15 161	18 150
mates	11.4	16.6	6.1	11.9	10.6	9.3
		Y- Yo W - Wa	ork popula chapreague	tion e populati	on	

Table IV. Cxygen consumption in $\mu l \ 0_2/mg$ N/hr at 10, 20 and 30 o/oo salinity

*reading not included in calculations, nitrogen determinations believed to be incorrect